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1721403
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No.:

ARNOLD BAROHONA, and all others similarly
situated under 29 U.S.C. § 216(B),

Plaintift,

V.

GLADES PARTS COMPANY, INC. d/b/a
ORIGINAL EQUIPMENT, a Florida Profit
Corporation,

Defendant.

COMPLAINT UNDER 29 U.S.C. § 201, ET SEQ.
(OPT IN PURSUANT TO 29 U.S.C. § 216(B))

Plaintiff, ARNOLD BAROHONA (“BAROHONA™), on behalf of himself and all others
similarly situated under 29 U.S.C. § 216(B), by and through undersigned counsel, files this
Complaint against Defendant, GLADES PARTS COMPANY, INC. d/b/a ORIGINAL
EQUIPMENT, a Florida Profit Corporation (“GLADES”), and alleges as follows:

1. This 1s an action under the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201, ef seq.

2. At all times material hereto, Plaintiff BAROHONA was a resident of Miami-Dade
County, Florida.

3. At all times material hereto, Defendant GLADES was a Florida profit corporation
incorporated under the laws of the State of Florida.

4, At all times material hereto, Defendant GLADES was a corporation that regularly

transacted business within Miami-Dade County, Florida.
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5. At all times material hereto, Defendant GLADES was a corporation that
maintained its registered agent in the State of Florida.

0. At all times material hereto, Defendant GLADES was engaged in interstate
commerce.

7. At all times material hereto, Defendant GLADES was Plaintiff BAROHONA’s
employer as defined by 29 U.S.C. 203(d).

8. Plaintiff BAROHONA is a covered employee under the Fair Labor Standards Act,
29 US.C. § 201, ef seq.

9. All acts or omissions giving rise to this dispute occurred in Miami-Dade County,
Florida.

COUNT I - FEDERAL OVERTIME WAGE VIOLATION

10. Plaintiff BAROHONA re-adopts and incorporates by reference each and every
factual allegations se forth in Paragraphs 1 through 9 above, as if set forth herein verbatim.

1. This action is brought by Plaintiff BAROHONA pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 201, et
seq.

12. This action is brought as a collective action under 29 U.S.C. § 216(B), as it is
believed that the Defendants have employed other similarly situated employees like Plaintiff
BAROHONA who have not been paid overtime for work performed in excess of forty (40) hours
per work week, from the filing of this complaint back three (3) years.

13. This is an action to recover for Plaintiff BAROHONA, and those similarly
situated, from the Defendants unpaid overtime compensation at one-and-one-half times the
regular rate of pay at which they were employed, as well as an additional amount of liquidated
damages, costs, and reasonable attorney’s fees under the provisions of 29 U.S.C. § 201, ef seq.,

and also under the provisions of 29 U.S.C. § 207.
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14, This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 as this case is brought
pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201, ef seq.

15. Plaintiff BAROHONA worked in sales for the Defendants, from October 1, 2014,
through July 7, 2017. His agreed-upon hourly rate of pay in this position was $17.50/hr.

16. Plaintiff BAROHONA was employed at the Defendant’s physical location with
the address of 500 W. 83™ Street, Hialealh, FL 33014, where it did business under the fictional
name “Original Equipment.”

17.  The goods and materials Plaintiff BAROHONA used and/or handled and/or
guarded on a constant and/or continual basis and/or that were supplied to him by the Defendant
to use on the job moved through interstate commerce prior to and/or subsequent to Plaintiff
BAROHONA’s use of the same and, thus, affected interstate commerce.

8.  Plaintiff BAROHONA’s work for the Defendant was actually in and/or so closely
related to the movement of commerce while he worked for the Defendant that the Fair Labor
Standards Act applies to Plaintiff’s work for the Defendant.

19.  The Defendant regularly employed two or more employees for the relevant time
period who handled goods or materials that traveled through interstate commerce, or used
instrumentalities of interstate commerce, thus making the Defendant’s business an enterprise
covered under the Fair Labor Standards Act.

20. Upon information and belief, the Defendant GLADES had gross sales or business
done in excess of $500,000 annually for the years 2014, 2015 and 2016.

21.  Upon information and belief, the Defendant GLADES’s gross sales or business

done is expected to exceed $500,000 for the year 2017.
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22. Between October 1, 2014, and July 7, 2017, Plaintiff BAROHONA routinely
worked overtime hours for which he did not receive appropriate pay of one-and-one-half times
his hourly pay rate as required under 29 U.S.C, § 207. Plaintiff’s regular rate of $17.50/hr.
remained the same throughout his employment with Defendant GLADES, but some months into
his employment, Defendant GLLADES began paying Plaintiff BAROHONA a commission for
sales of auto parts.

23.  Plaintiff BAROHONA regularly worked from 8:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. (a 9.5 hour
workday), Monday through Friday, without breaking for lunch. Although he consistently worked
these hours, Plaintiff BAROHONA was never paid at one-and-one-half times his regular rate for
hours worked in excess of forty (40) per week.

24, Moreover, in or around October, 2015, Plaintiff BAROHONA was asked to work
a 5-hour shift every Saturday, from 8:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. When he asked his supervisor whether
he would be properly compensated for these hours, Plaintiff BAROHONA was informed that he
would not be paid any additional compensation for these shifts, not even at his regular rate.

25, After this time, Defendant began making improper and unauthorized deductions
from Plaintiff’s paychecks.

26.  Although the deductions on Plaintiff’s paychecks are categorized as “Loans,” they
do not reflect the repayment of any loan from Defendant to Plaintiff.

27, Instead, these deductions represent Defendant GLADES PARTS COMPANY,
INC.’s improper and unlawful attempt to recapture a commission that had been paid to Plaintiff
BAROHONA, as part of the terms of his employment. This commission had initially been paid

to Plaintiff by Defendant, in connection with a sale of auto parts completed by Plaintiff.




Subsequently, however, the customer who made this purchase failed to pay the Defendant’s

invoices for those parts, through no fault of the Plaintiff’s.

28, The Defendant still owes Plaintiff BAROHONA, and those other employees
similarly situated, api)ropriate overtime wages since the commencement of his employment with
the Defendant, as well as the amounts impropetly deducted from his paychecks, as set forth
above.

29.  Upon information and belief, the Defendants failed to keep the requisite time
records of all hours worked by Plaintiff BAROHONA, and those other employees similarly
situated, and of all payments made to Plaintiff BAROHONA, and those other employees
similarly situated, pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act.

30.  Upon information and belief, Defendant GLADES’ failure to pay proper overtirﬁe
wages to Plaintiff BAROHONA was knowing and willful, and reflects a systemic practice at
GLADES.

31, Plaintiff BAROHONA has retained the undersigned law offices to represent him
in this action, and is obligated to pay a reasonable attorney’s fee.

WHEREFORE, Plaintitf BAROHONA, and those similarly situated, demand judgment
against the Defendant for violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act; request an award of actual
damages in the amount to be shown to be due for unpaid overtime wages for hours worked in
excess of forty (40) per work week, with interest; request an award of actual damages for
unlawful deductions taken from Plaintiff BAROHONA’S paycheck, with interest; request
awards of equal amounts in double/liquidated damages, with interest, for each of the foregoing;
request an award of reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of the instant suit; and request all other

relief the court deems equitable and just.
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COUNT II - RETALIATION UNDER FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT

32, Plaintiff BAROHONA re-adopts and incorporates by reference each and every
factual allegations set forth in Paragraphs 1 through 31 above as if set forth herein verbatim.

33, In or around October, 2015, Plaintitf BAROHONA complained to the Defendant
about the fact he had not been paid his overtime pay appropriately under the Fair Labor
Standards Act, and that he was going to be required to work Saturday shifts without any
additional compensation. In response, Plaintiff BAROHONA was told that his alternative was to
terminate his employment with Defendant GLADES,

34.  After this complaint by Plaintiff BAROHONA, Defendant began making
improper and unauthorized deductions from Plaintiff’s paychecks.

35. Although the deductions on Plaintiff’s paychecks are categorized as “Loans,” they
do not reflect the repayment of any loan from Defendant to Plaintiff.

36. Instead, these deductions represent Defendant GLADES’ improper and unlawful
attempt to recapture a commission that had been paid to Plaintiff BAROHONA, as part of the
terms of his employment. This commission had initially been paid to Plaintiff by Defendant, in
connection with a sale of auto parts completed by Plaintiff. Subsequently, however, the customer
who made this purchase failed to pay the Defendant’s invoices for those parts, through no fault
of the Plaintiff’s.

37. Upon information and belief, these improper deductions from Plaintiff
BAROHONA’s paychecks were the result of his complaints concerning overtime wages, but for
which the deductions would not have been made, and were done in retaliation for his having
engaged in protected activity.

38. Plaintiff BAROHONA terminated his employment on July 7, 2017, having been

constructively discharged by Defendant for the reasons stated herein.
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39, The Defendants violated 29 U.S.C. § 215(a)(3) causing Plaintiff BAROHONA
damages including, but not limited to lost wages and the amounts of improper deductions from
his paychecks, and Plaintiff BAROHONA is entitled to liquidated damages based upon the
Defendants’ reckless disregard of the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff BAROHONA, demands judgment against the Defendant for
violation of 29 U.S.C. § 215(a)(3) for his damages; requests an award of his actual damages
arising from the adverse actions taken against his employment, with interest; requests an award
of an equal amount in double/liquidated damages; an award of reasonable attorney’s fees and
costs of the instant suit; and for all other relief this Court finds just and proper.

JURY DEMAND

40.  Plaintiff BAROHONA, and those similarly situated, demand a trial by jury as to
all issues so triable.
DATED: July 24, 2017,

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Robert A. Bouvatte, Jr.
Robert A. Bouvatte, Jr., Esquire
Florida Bar No.: 0071525
rbouvatte{@conroysimberg.com
Conroy Simberg
3440 Hollywood Boulevard, Second Floor
Hollywood, FL. 33021
(954) 961-1400 Broward
954-518-1252
Attorney for Plaintiff
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AQ 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Southern District of Florida

ARNOLD BAROHONA, and all other similarly
situated under 29 U.5.C. §216(B)

 Plaintifis)
V.

GLADES PARTS COMPANY, INC. d/b/fa ORIGINAL
EQUIPMENT, a Florida Profit Corporation,

Civil Action No.

R N W

Defendantys)

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

GLADES PARTS COMPANY, INC.

d/b/a ORIGINAL EQUIPMENT, a Florida Profit Corparation,
cf/o Registered Agent, James M. Stewart, Esq.

1211 Plaza Cir.

Singer isiand, FL 33404-4716

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)}2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,

whose name and address are:
Robert A. Bouvatte, Esq.,

Conroy, Simberg
3440 Hollywood Blvd., 2nd Floor
Holywood Florida, 33021

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

St’gé?ng;(re of C lerk; or Depury Clerk



ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: Glades Parts Company Clipped with Unpaid Overtime Class Action



https://www.classaction.org/news/glades-parts-company-clipped-with-unpaid-overtime-class-action

